
 

 

 

 
PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION 
Drinking Water Services  

 

 Kate Brown, Governor 

 

December 9, 2021 

 

Ed Hodges, PE 
eph@curran-mcleod.com 
Curran-McLeod, Inc. 

6655 S.W. Hampton St., Suite 210 

Portland, OR 97223 

 

Re: Falcon Cove Beach Water District (PWS #00045) – New Well L132105  

Curran-McLeod Project # 1530 

 Final Approval (PR #77-2019).  SRF SD# 19-242 
   

Dear Mr. Hodges: 
 

Thank you for your submittal to the Oregon Health Authority’s Drinking Water Services 

(DWS) of plan review information for the new well on behalf of the Falcon Cove Beach 

Water District.   

 

The information received via e-mail on October 1, 2021 included water rights 

documentation (GW Permit #G-18524 for 0.11 CFS from the well (L132105, 

CLAT55068) with a Priority date of January 24, 2020.  The information submitted in the 

e-mail also included well test results and a response to the conditions in my Conditional 

Approval letter dated January 9, 2020.  The well is granted Final Approval and may be 

placed into use.  This concludes the plan review process. 

 

The well is designated SRC-CA Well #1 (L132105) on its own entry point “C” (EP-C).  

Please ensure raw water sampling results indicate the sample location as “SRC-CA Well 

#1”.  Please ensure any treated water sampling representative of water entering the 

distribution system from this well is marked as having been taken at “EP-C Well #1”. 

 

Monitoring for this new well is described as follows and summarized in Table 1: 

 

1) Quarterly radionuclide sampling in 2022.  Due to the detection of gross alpha at 

3.88 pCi/l in sampling completed 12/11/19 from the well, quarterly radionuclide 

(gross alpha, radium 226/228, and uranium) sampling will be required in 2022.  

Future sampling requirements will depend upon the results of these four quarterly 

samples.  For reference the Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL) for gross alpha is 

15 pCi/l, therefore, this was not an exceedance of the MCL. 
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2) Two 6-month rounds of lead and copper tap sampling at 10 taps in 2022.  Due 

to the low pH of 6.6 from well water sampling completed 3/6/19 and the addition 

of a new source on a separate entry point, 2 rounds of lead and copper sampling 

will need to demonstrate that there is not adverse impact to lead and copper levels 

in the distribution system.  The first round of this sampling is to be completed at 10 

sites between January 1, 2022 and June 30th, 2022.  A second round of 10 tap 

samples will need to be collected between July 1, 2022 and December 31, 2022.  

Future monitoring may be reduced to either annual or once every 3 years, 

depending upon the results of these two demonstration rounds.  

 

3) Table 1 outlines initial entry point (EP-C) monitoring from this well for the next 3 

years and reflects the initial source sampling (SRC-CA) as being completed. 

 

 

Table 1 – Initial monitoring for Well #1 
 

Year 2 
(2023) 

 
Year 3 
(2024) Source Monitoring 

Completed in 2019 
Year 1 (2022) 

(Sampling completed 
prior to Final Approval) 

1st Quarter 
Jan 1 – March 31 

2nd Quarter 
April 1 – June 30 

3rd Quarter 
July 1 – Sept 30 

4th Quarter 
Oct 1 – Dec 31 

Sample at the Source 
(SRC-CA) 

Sample at the Entry Point (EP-C) to the distribution system served by the new source 

• Coliform 

• Nitrate, Nitrite 

• IOC, VOC, SOC 

• Arsenic 

• Radiological 
including 
uranium, gross 
alpha, and 
radium 226/228 

Radiological Radiological Radiological Radiological 
(future sampling 
depends upon 

these 4 
quarterly 
results) 

Annual: 

• Nitrate 

• VOC 

• SOC 

• Raw water 
coliform 
(pre-
treatment) 

• Nitrate 

• VOC 

• SOC 

• Raw water coliform (pre-treatment) 

 Tap Sampling in the Distribution System 
(to assess impact of the new well on distribution system corrosion). 

 Round 1 Lead and Copper 
Sample at 10 Tier 1 sites  
(January 1st – June 30th) 

Round 2 Lead and Copper 
Sample at 10 Tier 1 sites  
(July 1st – Dec 31st) 

Reduction to 5 tap 
samples every 1 or 
3 years is possible 
depending upon the 
results of the two 
rounds in 2022 
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Detections from the initial sampling in 2019 are summarized as follows: 

 

IOC (including nitrate and arsenic) and VOC Test results from sampling completed 

3/6/19 showed the following detections: 

• Barium = 0.0341 mg/l (MCL = 2 mg/l) 

• Iron = 0.066 mg/l (secondary standard = 0.3 mg/l) 

• Magnesium = 14.3 mg/l 

• Sodium = 32.1 mg/l (secondary standard = 20 mg/l) 

• Fluoride = 0.11 mg/l (MCL = 10 mg/l) 

• pH = 6.6 (secondary standard = 8.5. pH less than 7.0 is corrosive) 

 

Radionuclide (Gross Alpha, Uranium, Radium 226/228) test results from sampling 

completed 12/11/19 showed the following detection: 

• Gross Alpha = 3.88 pCi/L (MCL = 15 pCi/L) 

 

SOC – sampled 12/11/19 – no detects 

 

Coliform testing results: 

• 3/6/19 (special) - Total Coliform + / E.coli – 

• 11/17/21 (source assessment) – Total Coliform - / E. coli – 

 

I have cc’d several people on this letter for the following reasons: 

1. Charles Dice - operator for the Falcon Cove Beach Water District; 

2. Bo Ensign with OPRD Oswald West State Park since the well is located on park 

property as allowed under a written lease agreement with OPRD; 

3. Gail Hendrickson with Clatsop County since the well is located in Clatsop County 

and serves a service area largely located within Clatsop County; 

4. Nikki Hendricks with Oregon Water Resources Department who is the 

Watermaster in District 1 responsible for water rights in Tillamook County; 

5. Becky Bryant with Business Oregon as she is the regional project manager for SRF 

loan-funded projects in Tillamook County (It is my understanding that SRF funds 

under SD# 19-242 were used for the wellhouse, yard piping, residual disinfection 

system, and related appurtenances for which a Categorical Exclusion from further 

environmental review was granted on January 7, 2020.)  

6. Debra Lambeth with OHA – Drinking Water Services who is the Environmental 

Review Coordinator who granted the Categorical Exclusion. 

7. Adam DeSemple with OHA – Drinking Water Services who is the SRF Loan Fund 

Coordinator. 
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Thank you for your patience and cooperation in this plan review process and if you have 

any questions, please feel free to contact me at 971-200-0288 or via email at 

evan.e.hofeld@dhsoha.state.or.us . 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Evan Hofeld, PE 

Oregon Health Authority – Drinking Water Services 

 

CC: Charles Dice, Falcon Cove Beach Water District 

 cadice@hotmail.com 

Jaime Craig, Tillamook County Environmental Health  

 jcraig@co.tillamook.or.us  

Becky Bryant – Regional Project Manager – Business Oregon 

 becky.a.bryant@oregon.gov 

Debra Lambeth – OHA – DWS - SRF Environmental Review Coordinator 

 debra.g.lambeth@dhsoha.state.or.us  

Adam DeSemple – OHA – DWS – SRF Loan Fund Coordinator 

 adam.desemple@dhsoha.state.or.us 

 Gail Henrikson, Clatsop County Community Development 

  ghenrikson@co.clatsop.or.us 

 Nikki Hendricks, Oregon Water Resources Department 

  Nikki.M.Hendricks@oregon.gov 

Bo Ensign, OPRD Oswald West State Park 

 Bo.Ensign@oregon.gov 
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Project Description 

 

On May 6, 2019, our office (OHA-DWS) received a site map showing the location of a 

new well located on property within OPRD Oswald West State Park and a preliminary 

water well construction diagram.  A plan review fee of $825 and Land Use Compatibility 

Statement (LUCS) was received on May 6, 2019.    

 

On January 7th - 8th , 2020 DWS received the plans showing how the well is to be 

connected to the system, revised lease agreement with OPRD indicating hazards will be 

prohibited within 100-ft of the well, approved waiver of the Geologic Hazard Overlay 

provisions issued by Clatsop County, and LUCS approved by Clatsop County.  IOC and 

VOC results were also submitted. 

 

On January 9, 2020 a Conditional Approval Letter was issued by OHA-DWS. 

 

On February 13th, 2020 DWS received SOC and bacteriological test results (along with 

the previously submitted IOC and VOC results). 

 

On October 1, 2021 DWS received water rights information (GW Permit #G-18524 for 

0.11 CFS from the well L132105, CLAT55068 with a Priority date of January 24, 2020).  

The information submitted in the e-mail also included well test results and a response to 

the conditions in my Conditional Approval letter dated January 9, 2020.   

 

SRF funds under SD# 19-242 were used for the wellhouse, yard piping, residual 

disinfection system, and related appurtenances for which a Categorical Exclusion from 

further environmental review was granted on January 7, 2020.   

 

The well has been designated SRC-CA Well #1 (L132105) on its own entry point “C” 

(EP-C).  Raw water sampling results should indicate the sample location as “SRC-CA 

Well #1”.  Treated water sampling representative of water entering the distribution system 

from this well after treatment should be marked as having been taken at “EP-C Well #1”. 
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The project included drilling a new well to serve the District as shown below.  
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Geologist Evaluation of the Well Report (adequately constructed into confined aquifer) 

 

The well log (CLAT 55068, Well ID# 

L132105) shows that the well had been 

drilled on January 2, 2019.  Plans show 

the well has a 5 HP, 50-gpm submersible 

pump.  The well house is equipped with 

equipment needed for sodium 

hypochlorite residual disinfectant 

treatment and related controls, meters, and 

valves. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The proposed site plan was sent to our 

geologist, Tom Pattee, on 5/9/19.  Mr. 

Pattee evaluated the constructed well and 

provided the following comments on 

5/21/19: 
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